# **■** NetApp

# dbs events

ONTAP 9.11.1 EMS reference

NetApp February 12, 2024

This PDF was generated from https://docs.netapp.com/us-en/ontap-ems-9111/dbs-bulk-events.html on February 12, 2024. Always check docs.netapp.com for the latest.

# **Table of Contents**

bs events	
dbs.bulk events	1
dbs.clone events	1
dbs.cluster events	2
dbs.discon events	2
dbs.disconn events	3
dbs.drive events	3
dbs.encr events	
dbs.generic events	5
dbs.remote events	
dbs.remrep events	6
dbs.schedule events	8
dbs.secondary events	8
dbs.slice events	9
dbs.snapshot events	. 10
dbs.sw events.	. 11

# dbs events

### dbs.bulk events

### dbs.bulk.op

### Severity

**NOTICE** 

### **Description**

This message occurs when a distributed block store event related to bulk volume operations such as backups, restores, making of Snapshot copies, or cloning occurs. If the original distributed block store event specifies multiple drives, then an EMS event is generated for each drive.

### **Corrective Action**

None.

### Syslog Message

A distributed block store event \"%s\" of type \"%s\" for Service ID %u on node %u Drive ID = %u. Event ID = %u.

### **Parameters**

evtMessage (STRING): Description of the distributed block store event, including context details.

evtType (STRING): Type of the original distributed block store event.

**serviceID** (INT): Service ID that identifies the associated distributed block store service. It is "0" if there is no associated service.

nodeID (INT): Node ID number of the associated node. It is "0" if there is no associated node.

driveID (INT): Drive ID number of the associated drive. It is "0" if there is no associated drive.

evtID (INT): Distributed block store event ID number.

**evtDetails** (STRING): Specific details of the distributed block store event. It might a string, in JSON format, or empty.

### dbs.clone events

### dbs.clone

### Severity

NOTICE

### Description

This message occurs when a distributed block store event related to volume cloning occurs. If the original distributed block store event specifies multiple drives, then an EMS event is generated for each drive.

### **Corrective Action**

None.

### Syslog Message

A distributed block store event \"%s\" of type \"%s\" for Service ID %u on node %u Drive ID = %u. Event ID = %u.

#### **Parameters**

evtMessage (STRING): Description of the distributed block store event, including context details.

evtType (STRING): Type of the original distributed block store event.

**serviceID** (INT): Service ID that identifies the associated distributed block store service. It is "0" if there is no associated service.

nodeID (INT): Node ID number of the associated node. It is "0" if there is no associated node.

driveID (INT): Drive ID number of the associated drive. It is "0" if there is no associated drive.

evtID (INT): Distributed block store event ID number.

**evtDetails** (STRING): Specific details of the distributed block store event. It might a string, in JSON format, or empty.

### dbs.cluster events

### dbs.cluster

### Severity

**NOTICE** 

### **Description**

This message occurs when a distributed block store event related to cluster operations occurs. If the original distributed block store event specifies multiple drives, then an EMS event is generated for each drive.

#### **Corrective Action**

None.

### **Syslog Message**

A distributed block store event \"%s\" of type \"%s\" for Service ID %u on node %u Drive ID = %u. Event ID = %u.

### **Parameters**

evtMessage (STRING): Description of the distributed block store event, including context details.

evtType (STRING): Type of the original distributed block store event.

**serviceID** (INT): Service ID that identifies the associated distributed block store service. It is "0" if there is no associated service.

nodeID (INT): Node ID number of the associated node. It is "0" if there is no associated node.

driveID (INT): Drive ID number of the associated drive. It is "0" if there is no associated drive.

evtID (INT): Distributed block store event ID number.

**evtDetails** (STRING): Specific details of the distributed block store event. It might a string, in JSON format, or empty.

### dbs.discon events

### dbs.discon.snapmirror.end

### Severity

**ERROR** 

### **Description**

This message occurs when the Distributed Block Store (DBS) is unable to access snapmirror endpoint on the network. The DBS is responsible for managing the data that backs the FlexVols®.

#### **Corrective Action**

Check network connectivity between the cluster and the remote snapmirror endpoint. Check the 1G management network.

### **Syslog Message**

The Distributed Block Store is unable to access the snapmirror endpoint from cluster. The cluster fault type is %s and fault id is %u.

### **Parameters**

cfType (STRING): DBS cluster fault type of the associated object.

cfID (INT): DBS cluster fault ID number associated with the fault.

**cfStatus** (INT): Current status of the cluster fault. 1 = New (just reported), 2 = Existing (updated), 3 = Resolved (closed).

cfDetails (STRING): Description of the cluster fault, including context details.

**cfExtSrc** (STRING): DBS cluster fault externalSource label created by the CreateClusterFault API command and attached to the fault for testing purposes.

### dbs.disconn events

### dbs.disconn.remote.node

### Severity

**ERROR** 

### **Description**

This message occurs when the Distributed Block Store (DBS) detects that a remote node is not connected to cluster network. The DBS is responsible for managing the data that backs the FlexVols®.

### **Corrective Action**

Ping the remote nodes using jumbo frames to test network connectivity.

### Syslog Message

The Distributed Block Store has detected that a remote node is not connected to cluster network. The cluster fault type is %s and fault id is %u.

### **Parameters**

cfType (STRING): DBS cluster fault type of the associated object.

cfID (INT): DBS cluster fault ID number associated with the fault.

**cfStatus** (INT): Current status of the cluster fault. 1 = New (just reported), 2 = Existing (updated), 3 = Resolved (closed).

cfDetails (STRING): Description of the cluster fault, including context details.

**cfExtSrc** (STRING): DBS cluster fault externalSource label created by the CreateClusterFault API command and attached to the fault for testing purposes.

### dbs.drive events

### dbs.drive

### Severity

NOTICE

### **Description**

This message occurs when a distributed block store event related to drive operations occurs. If the original distributed block store event specifies multiple drives, then an EMS event is generated for each drive.

### **Corrective Action**

None.

### **Syslog Message**

A distributed block store event \"%s\" of type \"%s\" for Service ID %u on node %u Drive ID = %u. Event ID = %u.

#### **Parameters**

evtMessage (STRING): Description of the distributed block store event, including context details.

evtType (STRING): Type of the original distributed block store event.

**serviceID** (INT): Service ID that identifies the associated distributed block store service. It is "0" if there is no associated service.

nodeID (INT): Node ID number of the associated node. It is "0" if there is no associated node.

driveID (INT): Drive ID number of the associated drive. It is "0" if there is no associated drive.

evtID (INT): Distributed block store event ID number.

evtDetails (STRING): Specific details of the distributed block store event. It might a string, in JSON format, or empty.

### dbs.encr events

### dbs.encr.at.rest

### Severity

NOTICE

### **Description**

This message occurs when Distributed Block Store (DBS) enables or disables encryption at rest on a self-encrypting drive. Encrypting drives automatically encrypt and decrypt the data as it is written or read from the drive media. Enabling encryption at rest protects the data from unauthorized access if the drive is power-cycled. If the original DBS event specifies multiple drives, then an EMS event is generated for each drive.

### **Corrective Action**

None.

#### Syslog Message

This is a Distributed Block Store encryption at rest event. The event is \"%s\" of type \"%s\" for Service ID \"%u\" on node \"%u\". Drive ID = %u. Event ID = %u.

#### **Parameters**

evtMessage (STRING): Description of the DBS event, including context details.

evtType (STRING): Type of the original DBS event.

**serviceID** (INT): Service ID that identifies the associated DBS service. It will be "0" if there is no associated service.

nodeID (INT): Node ID number of the associated node. It will be "0" if there is no associated node.

driveID (INT): Drive ID number of the associated drive. It will be "0" if there is no associated drive.

evtID (INT): DBS event ID number.

evtDetails (STRING): Specific details of the DBS event. It may be a string, in JSON format, or empty.

# dbs.generic events

### dbs.generic.cluster.fault

### Severity

**NOTICE** 

### **Description**

This message occurs when a Distributed Block Store (DBS) cluster fault is reported as a generic fault. The DBS is responsible for managing the data that backs the FlexVols®. Multiple faults are mapped to this one event.

### **Corrective Action**

None.

### **Syslog Message**

This is a Distributed Block Store generic cluster fault. The fault is \"%s\" (%u) with severity \"%u\" for Service ID \"%u\" on node \"%u\". Drive list = %s.

#### **Parameters**

cfCodeName (STRING): Name of the original DBS cluster fault code.

cfCode (INT): DBS cluster fault code number.

**cfSeverity** (INT): Severity of the original DBS cluster fault. This is different than the EMS severity. **serviceID** (INT): Service ID that identifies the associated cluster service. It will be "0" if there is no associated service.

nodeID (INT): Node ID number of the associated node. It will be "0" if there is no associated node.

cfDriveIDs (STRING): List of the drive IDs associated with the fault. The list might be empty.

cfType (STRING): DBS cluster fault type of the associated object.

cfID (INT): DBS cluster fault ID number associated with the fault.

**cfStatus** (INT): Current status of the cluster fault. 1 = New (just reported), 2 = Existing (updated), 3 = Resolved (closed).

cfDetails (STRING): Description of the cluster fault, including context details.

**cfExtSrc** (STRING): DBS cluster fault externalSource label created by the CreateClusterFault API command and attached to the fault for testing purposes.

### dbs.generic.event

### Severity

**NOTICE** 

#### Description

This message occurs when a Distributed Block Store (DBS) event is reported as a generic event. The DBS is responsible for managing the data that backs the FlexVols®. Multiple DBS events are mapped to this one event. If the original DBS event specifies multiple drives, then an EMS event is generated for each drive.

### **Corrective Action**

None.

### **Syslog Message**

This is a Distributed Block Store generic event. The event is \"%s\" of type \"%s\" for Service ID \"%u\" on node \"%u\". Drive ID = %u. Event ID = %u.

#### **Parameters**

evtMessage (STRING): Description of the DBS event, including context details.

evtType (STRING): Type of the original DBS event.

**serviceID** (INT): Service ID that identifies the associated DBS service. It will be "0" if there is no associated service.

nodeID (INT): Node ID number of the associated node. It will be "0" if there is no associated node.

driveID (INT): Drive ID number of the associated drive. It will be "0" if there is no associated drive.

evtID (INT): DBS event ID number.

evtDetails (STRING): Specific details of the DBS event. It may be a string, in JSON format, or empty.

### dbs.remote events

### dbs.remote.cluster

### Severity

NOTICE

### **Description**

This message occurs when a Distributed Block Store (DBS) event such as a change in cluster pair connectivity status occurs. If the original DBS event specifies multiple drives, then an EMS event is generated for each drive.

### **Corrective Action**

None.

### **Syslog Message**

This is a Distributed Block Store remote cluster event. The event is \"%s\" of type \"%s\" for Service ID \"%u\" on node \"%u\". Drive ID = %u. Event ID = %u.

### **Parameters**

evtMessage (STRING): Description of the DBS event, including context details.

evtType (STRING): Type of the original DBS event.

**serviceID** (INT): Service ID that identifies the associated DBS service. It will be "0" if there is no associated service.

nodeID (INT): Node ID number of the associated node. It will be "0" if there is no associated node.

driveID (INT): Drive ID number of the associated drive. It will be "0" if there is no associated drive.

evtID (INT): DBS event ID number.

evtDetails (STRING): Specific details of the DBS event. It may be a string, in JSON format, or empty.

# dbs.remrep events

### dbs.remrep.async.dly.exceed

### Severity

**ERROR** 

#### **Description**

This message occurs when the Distributed Block Store (DBS) is executing remote replication for a pair of volumes, but that it has not reached active state for 6 hours. The DBS is responsible for managing the data that backs the FlexVols®.

#### **Corrective Action**

Check network connectivity between clusters. Inspect slice service logs to see if some issue is preventing replication from continuing.

### Syslog Message

The Distributed Block Store is attempting to perform remote replication that has not reached active state for 6 hours. The cluster fault type is %s and fault id is %u.

#### **Parameters**

cfType (STRING): DBS cluster fault type of the associated object.

cfID (INT): DBS cluster fault ID number associated with the fault.

**cfStatus** (INT): Current status of the cluster fault. 1 = New (just reported), 2 = Existing (updated), 3 = Resolved (closed).

**cfDetails** (STRING): Description of the cluster fault, including context details.

**cfExtSrc** (STRING): DBS cluster fault externalSource label created by the CreateClusterFault API command and attached to the fault for testing purposes.

### dbs.remrep.snap.cluster.full

### Severity

**ALERT** 

### **Description**

This message occurs when the Distributed Block Store (DBS) detects that Remote Replication of Snapshots is paused for associated volumes because target cluster is full. The DBS is responsible for managing the data that backs the FlexVols®.

#### **Corrective Action**

Free space on the target volume.

### Syslog Message

The Distributed Block Store detected that Remote Replication of Snapshots is paused for associated volumes because target cluster is full. The cluster fault type is %s and fault id is %u.

### **Parameters**

cfType (STRING): DBS cluster fault type of the associated object.

**cfID** (INT): DBS cluster fault ID number associated with the fault.

**cfStatus** (INT): Current status of the cluster fault. 1 = New (just reported), 2 = Existing (updated), 3 = Resolved (closed).

cfDetails (STRING): Description of the cluster fault, including context details.

**cfExtSrc** (STRING): DBS cluster fault externalSource label created by the CreateClusterFault API command and attached to the fault for testing purposes.

### dbs.remrep.snapshots.exceed

### Severity

**ALERT** 

### Description

This message occurs when the Distributed Block Store (DBS) detects that Remote Replication of Snapshots is paused for associated volumes because target volume has exceeded its snapshot limit. The DBS is responsible for managing the data that backs the FlexVols®.

#### **Corrective Action**

Delete snapshots on the target volume.

### **Syslog Message**

The Distributed Block Store detected that Remote Replication of Snapshots is paused for associated volumes because target volume has exceeded its snapshot limit. The cluster fault type is %s and fault id is %u.

### **Parameters**

cfType (STRING): DBS cluster fault type of the associated object.

cfID (INT): DBS cluster fault ID number associated with the fault.

**cfStatus** (INT): Current status of the cluster fault. 1 = New (just reported), 2 = Existing (updated), 3 = Resolved (closed).

**cfDetails** (STRING): Description of the cluster fault, including context details.

**cfExtSrc** (STRING): DBS cluster fault externalSource label created by the CreateClusterFault API command and attached to the fault for testing purposes.

### dbs.schedule events

### dbs.schedule.action.error

### Severity

**ERROR** 

### **Description**

This message occurs when the Distributed Block Store (DBS) is running one or more of the scheduled activities but the activity failed, for example running a scheduled create snapshot fails to complete. The fault clears if the scheduled activity runs again and succeeds, if the scheduled activity is deleted, or if the activity is paused and resumed. The DBS is responsible for managing the data that backs the FlexVols®.

### **Corrective Action**

Check the scheduler entry for issues.

### Syslog Message

The Distributed Block Store is attempting one or more scheduled activities which fails to complete. The cluster fault type is %s and fault id is %u.

### **Parameters**

**cfType** (STRING): DBS cluster fault type of the associated object.

cfID (INT): DBS cluster fault ID number associated with the fault.

**cfStatus** (INT): Current status of the cluster fault. 1 = New (just reported), 2 = Existing (updated), 3 = Resolved (closed).

cfDetails (STRING): Description of the cluster fault, including context details.

**cfExtSrc** (STRING): DBS cluster fault externalSource label created by the CreateClusterFault API command and attached to the fault for testing purposes.

# dbs.secondary events

### dbs.secondary.cache.thresh

### Severity

**ALERT** 

### Description

This message occurs when the Distributed Block Store (DBS) detects that Slice volume secondary write cache has reached the first fullness warning threshold. Secondary cache starts to fill when Slice service write requests to the Block service (and by extension the FireStorm service) are not receiving replies. Client write performance may be reduced if this condition persists. The DBS is responsible for managing the data that backs the FlexVols®.

#### **Corrective Action**

Verify that all nodes are online. Verify that all Block and FireStorm services, and associated aggregates, are online. Attempt repairs needed to bring nodes and aggregates online. If the reason for this condition cannot be found, contact NetApp technical support.

### **Syslog Message**

Slice secondary cache fullness threshold reached for service ID %u on node %u.

### **Parameters**

serviceID (INT): Service ID that identifies the associated cluster service.

nodeID (INT): Node ID number of the associated node.

cfDriveIDs (STRING): List of the drive IDs associated with the fault. The list might be empty.

cfType (STRING): DBS cluster fault type of the associated object.

**cfID** (INT): DBS cluster fault ID number associated with the fault.

**cfStatus** (INT): Current status of the cluster fault. 1 = New (just reported), 2 = Existing (updated), 3 = Resolved (closed).

cfDetails (STRING): Description of the cluster fault, including context details.

**cfExtSrc** (STRING): DBS cluster fault externalSource label created by the CreateClusterFault API command and attached to the fault for testing purposes.

### dbs.slice events

### dbs.slice.operation

### Severity

NOTICE

### **Description**

This message occurs when a Distributed Block Store (DBS) event relating to a slice service operation such as removing a metadata drive, slice reassignment i.e. balancing volumes, moving primaries, snapshot success, failure, expiration, group snapshot success, failure occurs. If the original DBS event specifies multiple drives, then an EMS event is generated for each drive.

### **Corrective Action**

None.

### **Syslog Message**

This is a Distributed Block Store slice event. The event is \"%s\" of type \"%s\" for Service ID \"%u\" on node \"%u\". Drive ID = %u. Event ID = %u.

#### **Parameters**

evtMessage (STRING): Description of the DBS event, including context details.

evtType (STRING): Type of the original DBS event.

**serviceID** (INT): Service ID that identifies the associated DBS service. It will be "0" if there is no associated service.

nodeID (INT): Node ID number of the associated node. It will be "0" if there is no associated node.

driveID (INT): Drive ID number of the associated drive. It will be "0" if there is no associated drive.

evtID (INT): DBS event ID number.

evtDetails (STRING): Specific details of the DBS event. It may be a string, in JSON format, or empty.

### dbs.slice.service.unhealthy

### Severity

**ALERT** 

### Description

This message occurs when the Distributed Block Store (DBS) is trying to migrate data away from an unresponsive Slice Service. The DBS is responsible for managing the data that backs the FlexVols®.

#### **Corrective Action**

Expect DBS to automatically resolve this failure. The cluster is automatically decommissioning data and rereplicating its data onto other healthy drives.

### **Syslog Message**

The Distributed Block Store is attempting to migrate data away from unresponsive Slice service ID %u on node %u.

#### **Parameters**

serviceID (INT): Service ID that identifies the associated DBS service.

nodeID (INT): Node ID number of the associated node.

**cfType** (STRING): DBS cluster fault type of the associated object.

cfID (INT): DBS cluster fault ID number associated with the fault.

**cfStatus** (INT): Current status of the cluster fault. 1 = New (just reported), 2 = Existing (updated), 3 = Resolved (closed).

cfDetails (STRING): Description of the cluster fault, including context details.

**cfExtSrc** (STRING): DBS cluster fault externalSource label created by the CreateClusterFault API command and attached to the fault for testing purposes.

# dbs.snapshot events

### dbs.snapshot.scheduler

### Severity

NOTICE

### Description

This message occurs when a Distributed Block Store (DBS) event related to scheduling snapshots occurs. If the original DBS event specifies multiple drives, then an EMS event is generated for each drive.

### **Corrective Action**

None.

### Syslog Message

This is a Distributed Block Store scheduler event. The event is \"%s\" of type \"%s\" for Service ID \"%u\" on node \"%u\". Drive ID = %u. Event ID = %u.

### **Parameters**

evtMessage (STRING): Description of the DBS event, including context details.

evtType (STRING): Type of the original DBS event.

**serviceID** (INT): Service ID that identifies the associated DBS service. It will be "0" if there is no associated service.

nodeID (INT): Node ID number of the associated node. It will be "0" if there is no associated node.

driveID (INT): Drive ID number of the associated drive. It will be "0" if there is no associated drive.

evtID (INT): DBS event ID number.

evtDetails (STRING): Specific details of the DBS event. It may be a string, in JSON format, or empty.

### dbs.sw events

### dbs.sw.encr.at.rest

### Severity

NOTICE

### **Description**

This message occurs when a Distributed Block Store (DBS) event relating to Software Encryption At Rest occurs, such as master key rekey completes or fails, rewrapping drive keys with new SEAR master key takes too long occur. Software Encryption At Rest when enabled, encrypts all data written, and decrypts all data read automatically in the software. If the original DBS event specifies multiple drives, then an EMS event is generated for each drive.

### **Corrective Action**

None.

### **Syslog Message**

This is a Distributed Block Store Software Encryption At Rest event. The event is \"%s\" of type \"%s\" for Service ID \"%u\" on node \"%u\". Drive ID = %u, Event ID = %u.

### **Parameters**

evtMessage (STRING): Description of the DBS event, including context details.

evtType (STRING): Type of the original DBS event.

**serviceID** (INT): Service ID that identifies the associated DBS service. It will be "0" if there is no associated service.

nodeID (INT): Node ID number of the associated node. It will be "0" if there is no associated node.

driveID (INT): Drive ID number of the associated drive. It will be "0" if there is no associated drive.

evtID (INT): DBS event ID number.

evtDetails (STRING): Specific details of the DBS event. It may be a string, in JSON format, or empty.

### Copyright information

Copyright © 2024 NetApp, Inc. All Rights Reserved. Printed in the U.S. No part of this document covered by copyright may be reproduced in any form or by any means—graphic, electronic, or mechanical, including photocopying, recording, taping, or storage in an electronic retrieval system—without prior written permission of the copyright owner.

Software derived from copyrighted NetApp material is subject to the following license and disclaimer:

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY NETAPP "AS IS" AND WITHOUT ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WHICH ARE HEREBY DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL NETAPP BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

NetApp reserves the right to change any products described herein at any time, and without notice. NetApp assumes no responsibility or liability arising from the use of products described herein, except as expressly agreed to in writing by NetApp. The use or purchase of this product does not convey a license under any patent rights, trademark rights, or any other intellectual property rights of NetApp.

The product described in this manual may be protected by one or more U.S. patents, foreign patents, or pending applications.

LIMITED RIGHTS LEGEND: Use, duplication, or disclosure by the government is subject to restrictions as set forth in subparagraph (b)(3) of the Rights in Technical Data -Noncommercial Items at DFARS 252.227-7013 (FEB 2014) and FAR 52.227-19 (DEC 2007).

Data contained herein pertains to a commercial product and/or commercial service (as defined in FAR 2.101) and is proprietary to NetApp, Inc. All NetApp technical data and computer software provided under this Agreement is commercial in nature and developed solely at private expense. The U.S. Government has a non-exclusive, non-transferrable, nonsublicensable, worldwide, limited irrevocable license to use the Data only in connection with and in support of the U.S. Government contract under which the Data was delivered. Except as provided herein, the Data may not be used, disclosed, reproduced, modified, performed, or displayed without the prior written approval of NetApp, Inc. United States Government license rights for the Department of Defense are limited to those rights identified in DFARS clause 252.227-7015(b) (FEB 2014).

#### **Trademark information**

NETAPP, the NETAPP logo, and the marks listed at <a href="http://www.netapp.com/TM">http://www.netapp.com/TM</a> are trademarks of NetApp, Inc. Other company and product names may be trademarks of their respective owners.